401 West Venice Avenue
Venice, FL 34285
WWww.venicegov.com

City of Venice

Meeting Minutes

City Council
Tuesday, May 8, 2018 9:00 AM Council Chambers
CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Holic called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.
ROLL CALL

Present: 6- Mayor John Holic, Council Member Jeanette Gates, Vice Mayor Bob Daniels,
Council Member Richard Cautero, Council Member Charles Newsom and Council
Member Margaret Fiedler

Absent: 1- Council Member Fred Fraize

ALSO PRESENT

Assistant City Attorney Kelly Fernandez, City Clerk Lori Stelzer, City
Manager Ed Lavallee, Recording Secretary Mercedes Barcia, and for
certain items on the agenda: Utilities Director Javier Vargas, Utilities
Administrative Coordinator Dorothy Tary-Ferrell, Historical Resources
Director Harry Klinkhamer, Human Resources Director Alan Bullock,
Development Services Director Jeff Shrum, Senior Planner Scott Pickett,
City Engineer Kathleen Weeden, and Controller Joe Welch.

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Ms. Stelzer offered the Invocation followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led
by Dorothy Tary-Ferrell.

. RECOGNITION

18-3285 Present National Drinking Water Week Poster Contest Award Certificates
to Students Mackenna DiLorenzo, Emma Underwood, and Joshua Woody
from Epiphany Cathedral School

Ms. Tary-Ferrell presented award certificates to Mackenna DiLorenzo, Emma
Underwood, and Joshua Woody.

18-3286 Proclaim May 2018 as "National Preservation Month", Presented to Jean
Trammell, Chair, Historic Preservation Board

Council Member Cautero presented this proclamation to Jean Trammell.

18-3287 Proclaim May 18, 2018 as "Venice Museums Day", Presented to Jean
Trammell, President, Venice Heritage, Inc., and Clarke Pressly, President,

City of Venice Page 1 of 16


http://venice.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6098
http://venice.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=5899
http://venice.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6036

City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Venice Area Historical Society

Vice Mayor Daniels presented this proclamation to Ms. Trammell and Clarke
Pressly.

18-3288 Proclaim the Week of May 6-12, 2018 as "National Women's Lung Health
Week", Presented to Kurt Goerke, Health Promotions Director, American
Lung Association

Council Member Fiedler presented this proclamation to Kurt Goerke.

18-3258 Proclaim May 18-19, 2018 as "Poppy Days", Presented to Sherry
Buffington, Poppy Chairman

Mayor Holic presented this proclamation to Sherry Buffington.

18-3289 Recognize the 60th Anniversary of the Venice Gardens Civic Association,
Presented to Jack Butler, President, Venice Gardens Civic Association

Council Member Newsom presented this proclamation to Jack Butler.

18-3290 15-year Service Award, Alan Bullock, Director of Human Resources
Mayor Holic and Mr. Lavallee presented this award to Mr. Bullock.

Il. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Peggy Shroyer, 917 Nokomis Avenue South, spoke to speeding in her
neighborhood and adding speed bumps.

lll. CONSENT SECTION:

A motion was made by Council Member Gates, seconded by Vice Mayor Daniels,
to approve items in the Consent Agenda with the exception of ltem No. 18-3295.
The motion carried by voice vote unanimously.

A. CITY CLERK

18-3291 Minutes of the April 19, 2018 Joint Meeting with Venice Fire Department
Stakeholder's Work Group and April 24, 2018 Regular Meeting

These Minutes were approved on the Consent Agenda.

IV. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT

B. CITY MANAGER

18-3295 Approve the Extension of Deed Restriction Between the City of Venice and
Habitat for Humanity South Sarasota County, Inc.

A motion was made by Vice Mayor Daniels, seconded by Council Member Gates,
to approve Item No. 18-3295.

Discussion followed regarding communication between Habitat for

City of Venice Page 2 of 16


http://venice.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6037
http://venice.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6058
http://venice.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6074
http://venice.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6084
http://venice.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6080
http://venice.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6096

City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Humanity South Sarasota County and John Peshkin, owner of Toscana
Isles property.

The motion carried by voice vote unanimously.

V. PRESENTATIONS

18-3296 City Engineer Kathleen Weeden: Downtown Roadway Corridor
Improvements Project Bid Review and Authorize the Mayor to Execute the
Construction Contract with Quality Enterprises USA, Inc., in the Amount of
$7,596,688 plus Alternates A through F as Determined by City Council for
a Total Not to Exceed $8,300,186.85

Ms. Weeden spoke to the downtown project to include bid award, project
boundary, drainage improvements, items included in the base bid,
requested motion, available budget, alternatives for consideration, and
responded to council questions regarding project bids, cost overruns,
irrigation, electrical for Tampa and Miami Avenues, light poles, LED lights,
funding for project alternatives, security cameras, concern with unexpected
costs emerging during construction, postponing alternatives, and phase
one project budget and surplus.

Discussion followed regarding project funding, motion, and Ms. Weeden
providing clarification on favorability at the next council meeting.

A motion was made by Council Member Cautero, seconded by Council Member
Fiedler, to execute the construction contract with Quality Enterprises USA, Inc. in
the amount of $7,596,688 plus alternatives B, C, and D, to include West Venice
Avenue median electrical and Miami Avenue and Tampa Avenue irrigation. The
motion carried by voice vote unanimously.

A motion was made by Vice Mayor Daniels, seconded by Council Member Gates,
to direct staff to return to the next meeting with a plan on incorporating
alternatives E and F, to include lighting conduit outside hardscape area and
plant hangers, and clarify favorability for the entire project. The motion carried
by voice vote unanimously.

Recess was taken from 10:20 a.m. until 10:30 a.m.

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. ORDINANCES - FIRST READING

ORD. NO. An Ordinance Amending City of Venice Ordinance No. 2017-31 which

2018-14 Adopted the Official Budget of the City of Venice, Florida for the Fiscal
Year Beginning October 1, 2017 and Ending September 30, 2018; by
Increasing the Total Revenue by $2,258,951 and Total Expenditures by
$2,258,951; and Providing for an Effective Date

There was no objection by council to address this ordinance out of order.

City of Venice Page 3 of 16


http://venice.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6102
http://venice.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6099

City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Ms. Stelzer read the ordinance by title only.

No one signed up to speak.

A motion was made by Vice Mayor Daniels, seconded by Council Member Gates,
that Ordinance No. 2018-14 be approved on first reading and scheduled for final
reading. The motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: 6- Mayor Holic, Ms. Gates, Vice Mayor Daniels, Mr. Cautero, Mr. Newsom and Ms.
Fiedler

Absent: 1- Mr. Fraize

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. ORDINANCES - FIRST READING

ORD. NO. An Ordinance of the City of Venice, Florida, Granting Rezoning Petition No.

2018-13 16-04RZ Amending the Pinebrook South Planned Unit Development
(PUD) and Resolution 518-74, as Amended, to Add Residential as a
Permitted use up to 18 Dwelling Units Per Acre on Property Located at
1220 Pinebrook Road, Owned by Pinebrook Park, LLC; Providing that all
Future Amendments to Resolution 518-74 Shall be Adopted by Ordinance;
Providing for Repeal of all Ordinances in Conflict Herewith; Providing for
Severability; and Providing for an Effective Date (Quasi-Judicial)

Mayor Holic announced this is a quasi-judicial procedure and opened the
public hearing.

Ms. Stelzer read the ordinance by title only.

Ms. Fernandez questioned council on conflicts of interest and ex-parte
communications. Ms. Fiedler noted having a discussion with Barry Snyder
on attending two planning commission hearings, Mayor Holic noted site
visit with no communication, and Mr. Newsom noted site visit,
communication with residents, and attending hearing at the planning
commission meeting. Mr. Newsom confirmed he can remain fair and
impartial and base his decision solely on the evidence presented today.

Jeffery Boone, representing applicant, being duly sworn, commented on
Mr. Fraize's attendance at the second reading, and questioned Ms. Fiedler
and Mr. Newsom regarding a campaign forum and voting decision. Mr.
Boone had no objections.

Mayor Holic noted attending the campaign forum.

Ms. Fernandez explained the process to determine affected party status.

Lowell Beatty, 1328 Lucaya Avenue, being duly sworn, requested affected

City of Venice Page 4 of 16


http://venice.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6082

City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

party status and confirmed proximity of his property to boundary of affected
lot.

Mr. Boone presented a map of Pinebrook South and asked Mr. Beatty to
mark the location of his residence on the map.

Ms. Fernandez noted standard for council granting affected party status.

Mr. Beatty responded to council questions regarding having an interest that
exceeds that of the general public.

Mr. Boone objected to Dan Lobeck, representing Pinebrook South
Homeowner's Association (HOA), assisting Mr. Beatty with questions.

Mayor Holic stated objection is noted.

Mr. Beatty responded to council questions regarding his residence's
proximity to proposed project and whether he will be affected.

A motion was made by Council Member Gates, seconded by Vice Mayor Daniels,
to approve affected party status for Mr. Beatty.

Mr. Boone stated no objection.
The motion carried by voice vote unanimously.

Roger Lawson, 1350 Lucaya Avenue, being duly sworn, requested affected
party status and confirmed his residence abuts the subject property.

Per Mr. Boone's request, Mr. Lawson marked his property on the map.

Ms. Fernandez noted the same standard applies in determining affected
party status for Mr. Lawson.

Mr. Lawson responded to council questions regarding how his property
would be affected by the proposal.

A motion was made by Council Member Fiedler, seconded by Vice Mayor
Daniels, to approve affected party status for Mr. Lawson.

Mr. Boone stated no objection.

The motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

Mr. Boone stated no objection to approving affected party status for Elaine
Lawson.

City of Venice Page 5 of 16



City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Elaine Lawson, 1350 Lucaya Avenue, being duly sworn, requested
affected party status and commented on proposed development impacting
property values.

A motion was made by Council Member Gates, seconded by Council Member
Fiedler, to approve affected party status for Ms. Lawson. The motion carried
unanimously by voice vote.

Mr. Boone stated no objection to granting affected party status for the
Pinebrook South HOA.

Mr. Lobeck, being duly sworn, spoke to requesting affected party status for
the Pinebrook South HOA.

A motion was made by Council member Fiedler, seconded by Vice Mayor
Daniels, to approve affected party status for Pinebrook South HOA. The motion

carried by voice vote unanimously.

Ms. Stelzer noted all written communication received was included in the
agenda packet.

Mr. Pickett, being duly sworn, provided a presentation and spoke on
petition summary, property history, Pinebrook South planned unit
development (PUD) 2018 aerial, future land use map (FLUM), existing
zoning map, comprehensive plan consistency, compliance with the
Pinebrook South PUD and land development code (LDC), consistency with
Code Section 86-47(f)(1): Findings for rezoning amendments, concurrency,
summary findings, planning commission report and recommendation to
council, and responded to council questions regarding property approval
for a home for the aged, lot area and setbacks, PUD maximum residential
density for mixed use residential (MUR), development standards, and
comprehensive plan policy Strategy LU 1.2.8 compatibility between land
uses.

Mr. Shrum, being duly sworn, commented on the comprehensive plan
compatibility matrix and noted strategies do not apply to current rezone
application.

Discussion followed regarding the compatibility matrix being applied to
future land use amendments, planning commission's decision and
recommendation, Comprehensive Plan Policy 8.12, property development,
project application, considering number of units per acre, determining
density, mitigation techniques, and recommendations from surrounding
property owners.

City of Venice Page 6 of 16



City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Mr. Boone noted he had two areas of questions and requested to address
questions separately.

Mr. Lobeck responded to Mr. Boone's request.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Shrum regarding density within MUR,
proposed and maximum residential dwellings within a PUD, mixture of
densities to include single and multi-family developments within a PUD,
Pinebrook South PUD zoning designation, attendance at the planning
commission hearing and comments made regarding a contract, and
whether the original resolution contained provisions stating it could be
amended or changed.

Mr. Boone withdrew his question regarding provisions in the original
resolution.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Shrum regarding resolution changes,
meeting with staff on the application, site and development plan
requirements, and language in Resolution 518-74 regarding gross
residential density and reason for restriction of residential use.

Mr. Lobeck objected and noted Mr. Boone's attempting to get into the
zoning determination and introduce subjects outside of scope.

Mayor Holic stated objection is noted.

Mr. Boone noted the resolution was part of the staff report, included in the
record, and not beyond the scope of direct.

Mr. Lobeck provided reasons for his objection.
Ms. Fernandez provided clarification on Mr. Lobeck's concern.

Mr. Boone noted his questions are directly related to staff's testimony and
presentation, and questions asked by council.

Ms. Fernandez commented on the normal scope of a rezoning proceeding.
Mr. Boone requested the audience refrain from making audible noises.

Mayor Holic requested audience members refrain from making audible
remarks and distracting gestures.

Mr. Boone continued to cross-examine Mr. Shrum on prohibition of
residential use on the subject property.

City of Venice Page 7 of 16



City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Mr. Lobeck objected and noted Mr. Boone is trying to get a zoning
determination that residential is allowed on the subject property, and is
beyond scope of direct.

Mayor Holic stated objection is noted.

Ms. Fernandez clarified part of an applicant's case is making factual and
legal arguments.

Discussion followed regarding documents in the record, PUD, property
history, and staff determination.

Mr. Boone spoke to objections made beyond the scope of direct, staff
report, and record entries.

Mr. Lobeck objected to evidence placed into the record during the course
of direct testimony.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Shrum regarding correspondence that was
mentioned in the staff report and included in the record.

Mayor Holic stated Mr. Lobeck's objection is noted.

Mr. Boone continued to cross-examine Mr. Shrum regarding provisions in
Resolution 518-74 and Resolution 794-83 to include prohibition of
residential use on the subject property.

Mr. Lobeck objected and noted Mr. Boone is trying to get a zoning
determination as to the allowable residential density and is beyond the
scope of direct.

Mayor Holic stated Mr. Lobeck's objection is noted.

Ms. Fernandez clarified the process on counsel objections.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Shrum regarding language in Resolution
863-85 to include permitted use for home for the aged and nursing home,
amendment to Resolution 518-74, restriction of residential use, Mr.
Lobeck's email dated May 3, 2018, and Mr. Shrum's response email to Mr.
Lobeck.

Mr. Lobeck objected to grounds for relevance.

Mayor Holic stated objection is noted.

City of Venice Page 8 of 16



City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Mr. Boone spoke to Mr. Lobeck's objection.
Mr. Boone continued to cross-examine Mr. Shrum regarding Mr. Lobeck's
response email dated May 2, 2018 and commented on Mr. Lobeck's time

conducting legal research.

Mr. Lobeck objected to Mr. Boone's comment on the time Mr. Lobeck took
to write the email.

Mayor Holic stated objection in noted.
Recess was taken from 12:31 p.m. until 1:45 p.m.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Shrum regarding Mr. Lobeck's email dated
May 3, 2018 referencing Mr. Shrum's conclusion.

Mr. Lobeck noted a standing objection to line of questioning.
Mayor Holic stated objection is noted.

Mr. Boone requested the record reflect he did not ask Mr. Shrum for a
zoning determination.

Mr. Lobeck cross-examined Mr. Shrum regarding gross density, project,
language in Strategy LU 1.2.16 MUR and Chapter 86 LDC, compatibility,
density determination, proposed site plan for 18 units per acre, Mr. Boone
indicating at the planning commission hearing he may request a setback
variance on the site plan if the rezone was approved, proposed building
height, and FLUM density matrix.

Mr. Boone objected to Mr. Lobeck's question on the density matrix.
Mayor Holic stated objection is noted.

Mr. Lobeck cross-examined Mr. Shrum regarding compatibility
determination on residential designations, Pinebrook South PUD
densities, FLUM compatibility, PUD agreement being characterized as a
contract, and amendments to the Pinebrook South PUD.

Mr. Boone had standing objection to Mr. Lobeck's questions.

Mayor Holic announced objection is noted.

Mr. Lobeck cross-examined Mr. Shrum regarding amendments to the

City of Venice Page 9 of 16



City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Pinebrook South PUD and whether there were any objections from
residents, concerns from the planning commission on compatibility and
consistency with the comprehensive plan, PUD allowing 18 units per acre,
multi-family development, lake buffer, and compatibility.

Mr. Beatty and Mr. and Ms. Lawson had no questions for Mr. Shrum.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Shrum regarding Mr. Boone seeking a
variance for this project.

Mr. Lobeck objected to Mr. Boone's question about his testimony at the
planning commission hearing.

Mayor Holic stated objection is noted.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Shrum regarding Mr. Boone's testimony at
the planning commission hearing, low density at Pinebrook South, MUR,
PUD resolution and amendments,allowing multi-family in the PUD, density
of a multi-family dwelling, lake buffer, zoning change, stormwater ponds,
and compatibility.

Mr. Lobeck cross-examined Mr. Shrum regarding transition and
multi-family development in the PUD.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Shrum on whether he made a
determination if residential is permitted on the site.

Mr. Boone noted he is not seeking to rezone the property, and spoke to
adding residential zoning, request for 18 units per acre, planning
commission meeting, affected parties, applicant's presentation, market
rate apartments, Pinebrook South PUD density, comprehensive plan,
mixed use, MUR designation, single and multi-family developments,
apartments, Pinebrook Road, neighborhood concerns, compatibility,
definition of "amend" and "entirety", consistency with the comprehensive
plan and zoning code, client's proposal, site and development process,
emergency access, parking, complying with landscaping and buffer
requirements, and requested council's approval.

Discussion followed on the 1974 planning commission letter to city council,
August 20, 1974 meeting minutes, Pinebrook development, and master
plan.

Mr. Boone responded to council questions regarding HOA groups that
have apartments in the PUD, compatibility between rental and ownership,
and the definition of "amend".

City of Venice Page 10 of 16



City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Recess was taken from 3:20 p.m. until 3:30 p.m.

Mr. Beatty commented on the planning commission's decision and
requested council to follow their recommendation.

Mr. Lawson spoke regarding the subject property zoning, proposed
parking lot behind his home, incompatibility, comprehensive plan meetings,
Bay Indies, placing high density rental housing adjacent to a nursing home,
controlled growth, Pinebrook Road, compromise, alternative to 18 units per
acre, and provided some of John Nolen's quotes.

Mr. Lawson responded to council questions regarding the length of time
living at his residence, interpretation of what would be built behind his
home, and lot width.

Mr. Pickett responded to council questions regarding setbacks from the
nursing home and vacant lot.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Lawson regarding notification of the
neighborhood meeting and applicant's disclosure, nursing home property,
and certificate of need.

Mr. Lobeck objected and noted beyond the scope of direct.

Ms. Fernandez provided clarification on affected parties objecting to other
affected parties questioning.

Mayor Holic stated objection is on the record.
Mr. Lobeck commented on Mr. Boone's cross-examination of Mr. Lawson.
Mayor Holic stated objection is noted.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Lawson regarding nursing homes and
certificate of need, designing of nursing homes, home for the aged, or
multi-family developments, additional traffic on site, nursing home
purchasing subject property, John Nolen's plan, condominiums on
Pinebrook Road abutting single-family homes, compromise, proposal for
low income housing, nursing home letter to Mr. Fraize dated May 27, 2016,
contact with the nursing home, and low income housing.

Mr. Lobeck objected to Mr. Boone's testimony and question on low income
housing.

City of Venice Page 11 of 16



City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Mr. Boone withdrew the question.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Lawson regarding the condominiums on
Pinebrook Road within the Pinebrook South PUD, issue with proposed
project, and housing for the aged development approval.

Mr. Lobeck objected to Mr. Boone testifying.
Mayor Holic stated objection is noted.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Lawson regarding home for the aged,
proposed project, and how many multi-family units would be acceptable.

Mr. Lobeck suggested Mr. Lawson include his documents in the record and
Mr. Boone had no objections.

Ms. Lawson declined to make a presentation.

Mr. Lobeck spoke to the Pinebrook South PUD, permitted uses, master
plan, neighborhood compatibility, determining density, planning
commission's decision, comprehensive plan, MUR, Policy 8.2, maximum
density of dwelling units per gross acres, PUD changes and regulation,
school capacity, neighborhood meeting, compromise, PUD amendments
being in conjunction with the site plan, neighborhood engagement and
agreeing to a resolution, non-residential uses on the property, traffic,
nursing home, apartment proposal, setback reductions, landscaping
regulations, property rights, and requested council to deny proposal.

Discussion followed on the meeting format.
Recess was taken from 5:07 p.m. until 5:20 p.m.

Mayor Holic commented on the meeting format.

There was council consensus to recess after the completion of audience
participation and Mr. Lobeck’s cross examination until 8:00 a.m. tomorrow
morning.

Fran Nelson, 1245 Waterside Lane, being duly sworn, noted opposition to
proposed rezone, and spoke regarding traffic, HOA and use of amenities,
and preserving property as currently zoned.

Per Mr. Boone's request, Ms. Nelson marked her property on the map, and
responded to Mr. Boone's question regarding number of acceptable units
on the subject property.

City of Venice Page 12 of 16



City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Holly Laird, 1312 Whispering Lane, President of the Board of Directors
Pinebrook South HOA, being duly sworn, spoke to concerns with the
proposed development and requested council deny the petition.

Per Mr. Boone's request, Ms. Laird marked her property on the map, and
responded to Mr. Boone's questions regarding residential development on
the subject property.

Ms. Laird responded to council questions regarding length of time living at
Pinebrook South.

Jim Lansing, 809 Connemara Circle, on behalf of the Central Venice
Coalition, being duly sworn, spoke to use of Pinebrook Road sidewalk and
traffic on Pinebrook Road.

David Greenberg, 612 Oak Hill Circle, Sarasota, representing petitioners,
being duly sworn, spoke to his work experience and involvement with the
subject property, previous property plans, and certificate of need.

Mr. Lobeck cross-examined Mr. Greenberg regarding the nursing home,

assisted living facilities (ALFs), combining the nursing home with an ALF,
senior housing certification, financial gain in the project, and Mr. Boone's
commitment of market rate apartments.

Mr. Boone objected and noted facts are not in the evidence.

Mayor Holic stated objection is noted.

Mr. Lobeck cross-examined Mr. Greenberg regarding selling,
development, and use of the property.

Mr. Boone commented on working with an ALF developer who wants to
build an ALF in the city.

Mr. Lobeck objected and noted testimony is hearsay and not
cross-examination.

Mayor Holic stated objection is noted.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Greenberg regarding ALF designs.
Dick Longo, 295 Marsh Creek Road, representing the Central Venice
Coalition and long term care ombudsman, being duly sworn, spoke

regarding proposal, comprehensive plan, project location, nursing homes,
and market demand.

City of Venice Page 13 of 16



City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Longo regarding certificate of need
requirement for new or expanded ALFs or nursing homes, and whether
there is a need for new nursing home beds in Sarasota County.

James Economides, 1322 Whispering Lane, Pinebrook South HOA Vice
President, being duly sworn, spoke to the association's position on the
proposed development and believes council should deny the petition.

Mr. Economides responded to council questions on the definition of "infill".
Mr. Pickett read the definition of "infill" from the comprehensive plan.

Mr. Economides responded to council questions regarding length of time
at residence and use of the subject parcel.

Per Mr. Boone's request, Mr. Economides marked his residence on the
map, and responded to Mr. Boone's questions regarding the subject
parcel's zoning and use, and previous proposal for an apartment
development.

Kathleen Economides, 1322 Whispering Lane, being duly sworn, believes
proposal is out of character for the Pinebrook South PUD, presented a
picture showing traffic in front of the nursing home, and commented on site
and development plan, PUD MUR zoning, concerns with proposal, and
requested council to deny the petition.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Ms. Economides regarding the HOA
committee, number of acceptable units on the subject property,
development of condominiums, 50% open space requirement, and
appropriate location for apartment developments.

Dean Calamaras, 13 Gulf Manor Drive, being duly sworn, spoke to the
PUD and commercial use property designation.

Mr. Boone cross-examined Mr. Calamaras regarding his history and
involvement with the city, and resolution changes.

Linda Strange, 1247 Lucaya Avenue, being duly sworn, spoke to
non-residential space, institutional uses, resolution language, keeping the
current zoning, and buffer.

Per Mr. Boone's request, Ms. Strange marked her residence on the map
and responded to Mr. Boone's questions regarding HOA board
membership and resolution.

City of Venice Page 14 of 16



City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Mr. Boone spoke to Mr. Lobeck's testimony and cross-examination.

Mr. Lobeck objected to questions on allowing residential use.

Mayor Holic explained tomorrow's meeting format.

Mr. Boone spoke to rebuttal time and requested one hour.

Discussion followed on rebuttal time for each party.

Ms. Fernandez suggested each party to separate the rebuttal from closing.
Mr. Lobeck objected to Mr. Boone's request for additional rebuttal time.
Discussion continued on rebuttal time for each party.

Mr. Boone objected to 45 minutes rebuttal time.

Mayor Holic stated objection is noted.

There was council consensus to allow 45 minutes of rebuttal time to the applicant
and 30 minutes to affected party, and allow each party five minutes for closing
statements.

VIlIl. CHARTER OFFICER REPORTS

City Attorney

This item will be discussed on May 9, 2018.
City Clerk

This item will be discussed on May 9, 2018.
City Manager

This item will be discussed on May 9, 2018.
IX. COUNCIL REPORTS

Council Member Fraize

This item will be discussed on May 9, 2018.

Council Member Fiedler

This item will be discussed on May 9, 2018.

City of Venice Page 15 of 16



City Council Meeting Minutes May 8, 2018

Council Member Gates

This item will be discussed on May 9, 2018.

Council Member Daniels

This item will be discussed on May 9, 2018.

Council Member Cautero

This item will be discussed on May 9, 2018.

Council Member Newsom

This item will be discussed on May 9, 2018.
Mayor Holic

This item will be discussed on May 9, 2018.
X. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

No one signed up to speak.

Xl. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was recessed at 7:12 p.m. until May 9, 2018 at 8:00 a.m.

ATTEST: Mayor - City of Venice

City Clerk

City of Venice Page 16 of 16



